SE

TOWER HAMLETS

MAYOR'S EXECUTIVE
DECISION MAKING

Friday, 25 April 2014

Mayor’s Decision Log No. 59

1. FREE SCHOOL MEALS FOR PRIMARY AGE PUPILS (Pages 1 - 18)

If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements
or any other special requirements, please contact: John S. Williams, Service Head, Democratic

Services
Tel: 0207 364 4204, e-mail: johns.williams@towerhamlets.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 2



Agenda ltem 1

—_—

Individual Mayoral Decision Proforma F"N’a ?

Decision Log No: §° OI TOWER HAMLETS

Classification:
Report of: Robert McCulloch-Graham Unrestricted

Free School Meals for Primary Age Pupils

Is this a Key Decision? | No

Decision Notice N/A
Publication Date:

General Exception or | Not required
Urgency Notice
published?

Restrictions: N/A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This decision notice refers to the Mayoral Decision of 26" March 2014 to
introduce Free School Meals for Years 3-6 in primary schools from September
2014. This decision notice confirms how the funding for that project will be
arranged.

43% of the Tower Hamlets primary school population is eligible for statutory
free school meals. Since September 2013 a local initiative has provided a
free school meal for Reception and Year 1 pupils who are not otherwise
eligible. From September 2014, this local scheme will be replaced by a
Department for Education national scheme (known as Universal Infant Free
School Meals — UIFSM), funded from specific grant, to provide a free school
meal for Reception — Year 2 pupils who are not otherwise eligible.

This report considers the Health and Wellbeing considerations in promoting
greater take-up of primary age pupils taking a nutritional meal at lunchtime.

On the 26" of March a Mayoral decision was taken to introduce a new locai
scheme from September 2014 — July 2015 (one academic years) to provide
free school meals for all Year 3 — Year 6 pupiis who are not otherwise eligible
at an estimated total cost of £2.675m for one academic year.

Approval for funding was alsc referred to full Council on the 26™ of March
2014 and Council agreed a number of virements to allow the mayor to fund
the cost of this proposal. This report requires the Mayor to confirm his
decision with regards how the proposal is to be funded

Page 1




DECISION

1. Agree, in accordance with the resolution of Full Council that £1.05m of

the Public Health efficiencies or additional funding in 2015/16 be ring-
fenced to support the local scheme for free school meals for primary
age pupils to proceed for one academic year.

. Agree, in accordance with the resolution of Full Council that £1.3m of

the Public Health funding in 2014/15 be set aside to fund the iocal
scheme for free school meals, rather than funding the working start for
women in health and childcare programme.

. Should the outcome of the Public Health review identify further

efficiencies, agree to set aside up to £478k of those efficiencies in
2014/15 to provide for the balance of funding required during the
2014/15 financial year.

. Pending the outcome of the Public Health review, agree to earmark

and vire £478k from the general reserve in 2014/15, to meet
commitments in 2014/15.

APPROVALS

1.

(if applicable) Corporate Director proposing the decision or
his/her deputy

| approve the attaghed report and proposed decision above for

Chief Finance Officer or his/her deputy

| have been consulted on the content of the attached report which
includes my
comments.

Monitoring Officer or his/her deputy
| have been consulted on the content of the attached report which
includes my

comments.

(For Key Decision only — delete as applicable)

Page 2



I confirm that

i§ decision:-

Page 3




Aue uo Joedw aanebau paiyjuapl ou usaq sey a3Y] aouU3PIAS

Bunoddns ay) pue [esodoid ay) Jo MSIAISAO UB WOl SIA | leym Aq pajoaye aq o) A3yl SI JO 3q ||IM OUM JB3|D |l S| g
S3IA £Jealo sjesodoid ay) Jo saWoN0 ay) aly e
jesodold JO MaIAIBAD L
(311212 03 pea) Ajijenba pajeuiwou [ ainsun
10 J9beuep 99iAI9S ddS 9yl 0) uoysenb ayy | ;oN uonsany) / eady Isipoayn | a2be1g
yse asea|d ‘ainsunjou s Jamsue ayj §|) JUswWIWIO) | J SIA

‘abe)s sIY) Je papusLuULIodal 8. suoioe

Jayunj ou pue soysLgoRIRYD PBJo8)0Id aieys oym ajdoad uo
sjoaye aslaape Aue aaey o) Jeadde jou seop |esodoid s|espy
jooyos aai4 ay} 1sipoayo v oy Buiuiopad Jo ynsal e sy

uonejuswajdw] ypum peasoid .

(sanijenba 03 aosueAsjal

mo| sey |esodoud ay) pue |esodoud sy ut pappaquis

s1 sdnoub pajosjoud auju ay) 0} piebas anp se uayeuspun
aq jou |Iim 3 |Ind B Y 9y} uo paseq ‘10 uayeHapun

aq |lim w3 |INd B YO 8y} uo paseq ‘ajdwexa 104 YO 8y}
10 JInsal e se pauaddey sey Jeypn I1sIipoeyo aoueinssy
Aljeny ayy jo sBuipuly ay} jo Alewwins e apiAnold asea|d)
(v xtpuaddy Butsn) v oy}

Bunajdwos jo pua ayj e pajsjdwod aq o} — Alewiwng

(viL0Z yaJsew ,02) Aunl piaeg

(a3ep out) Ag 4o paubis

Weye9-yao|inJoN Heqoy

19210 peoT]

Buisqispi pue aleq [e100g ‘uoljeonp3

99IAI9G | 9)RI0}D3II]

s|idnd aby Asewind 1o} sjespy jooyog aal4

(jesodoud sbuinesjainioniisal ‘ainpasoid
‘108lo1d *ABajens ‘uonouny ‘adinles ‘Aoijod e ag ued jesodoud)
pajuswajdwi uaaq } sey moy pue |esodouid, jo sawenN

LSITMO3HO FONVHNSSY ALIIVND SISATVNY ALITVYNO3




"pauIquIod s|ooyds |epaads g Alepuodas ‘Aseunsd papuny 21els 0} 51331 SIY} - ETOZ AJENUel — SINSLIIIRIBYD J1BY) PUE s|idng — 34 :324n0S |

‘MBIASY Joulely ay | éjesodotd
pUE 32UBpIng uoljeonpd Jo Juawyuedaq Buipnjoul yosessal ayy Aq pajoaye sdnoib woly siasn pue sIspjoysyels o)
|euoljeu pue |eoo| Ag pauwuojut usaq sey jescdoid ayy) | SIA YIM UOIIBYNSUOD JO 2oUBPIAS 1B8|D alaLy} S|
‘pajen|eAa pue paicjuow sq ¢ SISAjeUE By} Ul panjoaul usaq aaey (siauned
ued awayos sy Jo ssuaq Buiaqiem pue yjesy ayj jey} os pue swea)} ‘s|doad) asipadxa pue abpajmouy] Jueas)sl 9
aAlemul SIy) Jo WYBISIaAC aAeY pjnom wea | YieaH aligqnd aylL | S3A 2INSUS 0} apew usaq Jdwaye s|qeuoseal e seH
¢ SisAjeue ay} uLIojul Ued jeyy ysieasal
GlL-Zl ueld saniwed pue ualpjiy) siojweH Jamo] ‘'seA | SIA [euonjeu;jeuoiBal/jeoo] Jo aouspiAs JuaIYNS 31aY) S|
‘ajdoad BunoA pue uaipjiyo 10}
uojjejndod jeoo; ay) uo ejep siydeibowap yydsp w suiejuo? ¢syoedwi Jnoge apew swiejo Hoddns e
Gl-Zl Ug|d saljied pue uaipliyd si8jWweH 1amol 8yl | STA 0} ejep sAljejjuenb pue aagejjenb asjqey|ss 818y} sj h
uolje}jnsuoc) pue eje( / @OUpIAg m:_#om__oo / mc.:o“_cos_ rd O
)
"|Joouyos oyioads ai o

jo Apog Bujulanog) sy} Aq ua)e) uoisioap e si syuswalinbal
Arejaip oyvads Ajeinynayssnoibijel jo uoisiaold ayy

‘JonamoH ‘jesw jejeH sapnjoul Siyl — Sjooyos SWos Ul spasu
Aejalp jepads aaey oym sidnd 10} ajgelins s|eaw apiaoid spp

" .{%€°69 S ainbl uopuoT) ||eJano pue|bu3 ul %992
0} pasedwod ysiug ajuyaa uey) Jayio dnoub aiuyye ue o)
Buibuojaq se payisse)o alam uonejndod j0oyas ay} IO %E 68

"8|qibij2 asImIayI0 Jou e
oym sjidnd g Jes A — ¢ JBaA ||B 10} S|EaW jooyds a1 apiaoid
[IIM )1 SB ualpjiyo jooyos jje Joedwi Ajoaiusod jim |esodoad siy |

épRloajje
'soljsusoeIBY Pa10dJ0Id 6 9yl Jo asoy} jo ajoid Ayenba ay) noge uoljeuour asy)
(AJuepo o3 pes| Ajjenba pajeujwou | ainsun
10 Jobeuey aiAIOg ddS @Y} 03 uonsanb ayy | /oN uonseny) / ealdy )sipioayn | abels

yjse asee|d ‘ainsSun/ou si JAMSUE 3y} §|) JUSWWOY) | [ SBA




jusuissasse

8|} woyy Buisuze sBuipuly Aey ay} uo ucieuLIoju e
S3A JuI0IYNS UIBUOD AlBLULINS 2AJNJaXa aU) Sao(]
Ue|d Uoljoy pue sawo2ln) bulloday 9
‘Pajen|eAs pue palojiuow aq
ued awayds ay) Jo spyouaq Bulaqgjiem pue yjeay ayj Jeyy os ¢,¢ Sosua)orIRYD pajosjold ay) ssosoe Joeduwl q
aAjeIlul SIU) Jo JyBisiano aney pinom wes) yyesH aigqnd @yl | S3IA yoel} o} palojuow aq Jim ssaiboid ayy moy Jesjo it §)
ilesodoad ayy jo uoneawsa|dun e
S3JA | aulupne 10 maiaal o} adeld ul sjuswabuelre alay) aly b
buliojiuopy pue asuelnssy Ajljlend S o
q ®
S3A paJo|dxe uaaq suoljdo aAljeUIS)e aARH a
Y/N Jueld uonoe paalbe ue aley) s) 2
ue|d uoloy juawaaoidul| pue uonjebiin b
"8]qiBije asimiaulo jou ale ¢sdnoub jualayip uo oedwl
oym sjidnd g JeaA — € JB3A [|E 10} S|EaW |ooyos aal) apiaoid |enbaun aaey ued Aem awes ayj ul paijdde sjesodoid q
[Im )1 se ualp|iyo jooyoas jje joedwi Ajgaisod |im jesodoad siy Vv/N yoiym ut Aem ay} jo Buipuelsiapun lesjo e a1ay) S|
£sonsusjoeieyo pajoajold sulu ayy jsbuowe
10edW) 0 Ucelaldiaul By} pue (0}8 Blep ‘uoieLLIoul) e
S3JA B0USPIAS JO SB2JNOS Y} USaM]SQ SHUI) Jealo alay) aly
sisAjeuy pue Joedw| buissassy ¢
(AJlae]2 0] pea| AJljenba pajeulwiou | ainsun
10 Jabeuepy adIAIBS ddS 9y} 03 uonsanb ayy | /oN uonsany) / ealy )sioayn | abelg

)jse aseajd ‘ainsun/ou si JAMSUE ayj §|) JUsWIWO)

| SBA




Executive Mayor Decision %_.

26" March 2014

TOWER HAMLETS
Classification:
Report of: Robert McCulloch-Graham Unrestricted
Free School Meals for Primary Age Pupils
Lead Member Councillor Oliur Rahman, Cabinet Member for
Children's Services
Originating Officer(s) David Tully / Michael Hales
Wards affected All Wards
Community Plan Theme | A healthy and supportive community
Key Decision? Yes

Executive Summary

43% of the Tower Hamlets primary school population is eligible for statutory free
school meals. Since September 2013 a local initiative has provided a free school
meal for Reception and Year 1 pupils who are not otherwise eligible. From
September 2014, this local scheme will be replaced by a Department for Education
national scheme (known as Universal Infant Free School Meals — UIFSM), funded
from specific grant, to provide a free school meal for Reception — Year 2 pupils who
are not otherwise eligible.

This report considers the Heaith and Weillbeing considerations in promoting greater
take-up of primary age pupils taking a nutritional meal at lunchtime. On the 26" of
March a Mayoral decision was taken to introduce a new local scheme from
September 2014 — July 2015 (one academic year) to provide free school meals for
all Year 3 — Year 6 pupils who are not otherwise eligible at an estimated total cost of
£2.675m for one academic year.

Approvai for funding was also referred to fult Council on the 26" of March 2014 and
Council agreed a number of virements to aliow the mayor to fund the cost of this
proposal. This report requires the Mayor to confirm his decision with regards how the
proposal is to be funded

Page 7




Recommendations:
The Executive Mayor is recommended to:

1. Agree, in accordance with the resolution of Full Council that £1.05m of the
Public Health efficiencies or additional funding in 2015/16 be ring-fenced to
support the local scheme for free school meals for primary age pupiis to
proceed for one academic year.

2. Agree, in accordance with the resolution of Full Council that £1.3m of the
Public Health funding in 2014/15 be set aside to fund the local scheme for
free school meals, rather than funding the working start for women in health
and childcare programme.

3. Should the outcome of the Public Health review identify further efficiencies,
agree to set aside up to £478k of those efficiencies in 2014/15 to provide for
the balance of funding required during the 2014/15 financial year.

4. Pending the outcome of the Public Health review, agree to earmark and vire
£478k from the general reserve in 2014/15, to meet commitments in 2014/15.

Page 8



1.1

1.2

2.

2.1

3.

REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

To ensure that all primary age pupils have access to a healthy, nutritionai
meal at lunchtime.

To compiement the DfE's Universal infant Free School Meals initiative, by
extending it to include aii junior age pupils.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

Not to provide the initiative at all at this time.

DETAILS OF REPORT

3.1. Health and Wellbeing considerations

3.1.1

3.12

3.1.3

3.1.4

3.15

A healthy, balanced diet is essential for children's heaith and well-being.
Research confirms that healthy eating habits in the years before school are
very important because they influence growth, development and academic
achievement in later life.

A recent review of health inequalities by Marmot, Fair Society, Healthy Lives:
Strategic Review of Health Inequalities in Engiand post-2010, identifies the
early years as a crucial time to intervene to reduce health inequalities across
the life course. Quality of early years experiences can have a fundamental
impact on all aspects of human development, physically, emotionally and
intellectually.

Encouraging breastfeeding and ensuring that children eat well in their early
years are key to ensuring that they achieve their potential, and help prevent
them becoming overweight and obese.

This approach aiso heips to reduce the risk of serious diseases such as heart
disease, diabetes, stroke and cancers in later life.

Good nutrition is important for all children to:

» ensure that they get the right amount of energy (calories) and nutrients
needed while they are growing rapidiy

» ensure that they do not consume too much energy (calories), which may
lead to children becoming overweight or obese

* encourage them to eat a wide variety of foods and develop good dietary
habits to take with them into later childhood and beyond.

3.1.6 Currently in England:

* Qver a fifth of children are either overweight or obese by the time they join
reception class in primary school

Page 9



» Type il diabetes, which usually appears in adulthood, is starting to be seen
among some overweight children.

» Dental health is poor in many young children

« Cases of rickets are appearing more frequentiy

* More than one in four young children in the UK may be at risk of iron
deficiency, which is linked to slower intellectual development and poor
behaviour in the longer term

3.1.7 In recent years, changes in children’s diets have affected their nutrient intakes

with some children eating foods that are low in energy, iron, zinc and vitamin
A, and high in saturated fat, sugar and salt. In addition, many young children
also eat fewer than the recommended five portions of fruit and vegetables
each day.

3.2 Arrangements for the provision of school meals

3.2.1

3.2.2

3.23

3.24

In Tower Hamlets, aill maintained primary schools (with the exception of
Christchurch and St Peter's Primary Schools) have lunchtime meals provided
by the Council's in house provider, Contract Services. Sir Wiilliam Burrough
Academy plus free schools in the borough make their own arrangements.

42% of primary pupils in Tower Hamlets are already eligible for a free school
meal because the family income is below the level of £16,190 for the statutory
scheme. Since September 2013, pupils in Reception and Year 1, who are not
otherwise eligibie, have been able to access a free school meal, funded from
the Public Health Grant. This arrangement continues untii the summer of
2014 and from September 2014 the Department for Education are introducing
a national Universal Infant Free School scheme (UIFSM), funded from specific
grant, to provide a free school meal for all pupils in Reception — Year 2 that
are not otherwise eligible.

For 2014/15 the school meals service is operating on the basis of schools
meeting the full cost of statutory free school meals from formula funding in
their budget share. In the summer term, the last term of the locat initiative for
Reception — Year 1 pupils, the Public Health Grant will pay £2.30 per meal.
The full cost of primary paid meals is a combination of £1.90 from each pupil
taking a meal and a supplementary 40p per meatl from the school, again from
their formuia budget share.

Nursery age pupits have not been featured in either the current local initiative
or the DfE initiative from September 2014. Nursery age pupils are not eligible
to be considered for statutory free school meals unless they are occupying a
full-time nursery place. indeed nursery education is not statutory schooling.
Officers have not put forward proposals to include nursery age pupils. While
some nursery settings may be able to accommodate a rapid increase in the
number of meals provided at iunchtime, not ail will, particularly some of the
private, voluntary and independent providers who mainly provide part-time
early years education. Moreover, it is envisaged that due to the nature of the
facilities in many nursery settings and the real need to offer a “family styie”
service to this age group the inclusion of nursery age pupils in the current

Page 10



3.2.5

Mayor's Meals Scheme is not practical. Officers agree that the appropriate
starting point for any free schools initiative is the one chosen by the DfE:
Reception Year-group.

Details of the DfE UIFSM initiative have been published in March 2014. They
indicate that schools will receive a specific grant for each Reception — Year 2
pupil not otherwise eligible. The DfE's planning assumptions for this are that
the rate per meal is £2.30 (identical to the rates being used in Tower Hamlets
for primary school meals) and that they expect 87% of pupils to take up this
facility. A specific grant will be provided to each school, based on their take-

up.

3.3 Numbers of pupils likely to benefit and the costs

3.3.1 The latest dataset available is the January 2014 pupil census. [n Table 1
below, it indicates that 42% of primary age pupils were eligible for statutory
free school meals. Table 1 identifies how pupils in the January 2014 census
would be categorised if the proposed September 2014 arrangements were to
be in place.

Table 1: January 2014 Primary Pupil Census -
analysis by proposed September 2014 FSM status
Eligible for Eligible for
New Proposed Universal Eligible for
Local FSM Infant FSM | Statutory FSM Total
Reception 2,023 1,276 3,299
Year 1 2,070 1,317 3,387
Year 2 1,932 1,393 3,325
Year 3 1,888 1,369 3,257
Year 4 1,779 1,294 3,073
Year 5 1,763 1,397 3,160
Year 6 1,605 1,415 3,020
Total 7,035 6,025 9,461 22,521
Percentage 58% 42% 100%

3.3.2 There is always going to be a difference between the numbers of pupils
eligible and the numbers of pupils who take-up a free school meal. 100%
uptake is unlikely due to pupil absences, special diets and parental/pupil
choice. Using the DfE planning assumption that 87% of eligible pupils wilt
take a meal, this would suggest that the cost of the new proposed local FSM
scheme would be 7,035 x 87% x £2.30 per day x 190 school days = £2.675m.

3.3.3 His very difficult to gauge the number of pupils who are likely to benefit from a

scheme such as this. The figures will vary school by school, year-group by
year-group. Mt is possible that take-up would be as low as 80% (suggesting a
full-year cost of £2.459m), but in some authorities who have free school meal

Page 11



3.34

3.3.5

3.4

341

342

343

3.44

3.4.5

pilot schemes the uptake has been reported as high as 92% (suggesting a
full-year cost of £2.828m).

Pupil numbers, particularly in primary are rising, so the total number of
primary age pupils will also be a factor in the total cost of the initiative.

On the basis of the latest pupil number data, more than 7,000 individual
children would be eligible to benefit from this initiative if it were to be
introduced. Around 60% of pupils not eligible for free school meals take a
paid meal, although the figures will vary from school to school and year-group
to year-group. On the basis of the DfE planning assumption that 87% would
take-up a free school meal if it were offered, this would suggest that, of the
7,035 pupils eligible 6,120 (87%) would take up a free school meal, of which
4,221 would benefit from a meal they had previously paid for and 1,899 would
have a meal instead of some alternative lunchtime arrangement {eg a packed
lunch).

Other considerations

If there was a decision to proceed with an initiative to provide free school
meals to Year 3-6 across the Borough consideration would need to be made
and funding made available to invest in the additional light and heavy
equipment. The existing Mayors’ Meal Scheme and the approaching UIFSM
scheme have been able to be absorbed by nominal investment to the existing
service. However many kitchens are now approaching capacity and
additional heavy equipment would be required along with light and service
equipment if the anticipated numbers of additional meals were to become a
reality. A review of each site would need to be made to assess the needs of
each kitchen and a budget drawn up.

Schools would also need to consider, as they are having to for the start of the
UIFSM project in September, if their dining room is currently big enough to sit
all the pupils in one sitting or whether they will need to introduce staggered
lunchtimes — some schools currently in pilot areas have four separate sittings
staggered over a two hour lunch break. For this to happen school timetables
will have to be changed and queuing issues tackled at an early stage along
with the school considering additional supervisory staff in the dining hall.

With the increase of foodstuff procurement and dependent on the contract
conditions of the LCSG (London Contract Supply Group) contracts in place
there may be some small efficiencies in the food costs element of meals.

Contract Services would need to reassess the staffing structures in each site
and recruit additional Kitchen Assistants and probably an additional Area
Manager (PO2). This would be funded from the £2.30 per meal.

Schools will be required to ensure that they provide accurate and timely meat
records detailing the demand by year group and if pupils are entitled under
the statutory free school scheme or even though recovering a free school
meal would have previously been expected to pay (due to not meeting the

Page 12



346

34.7

3.4.8

349

necessary criteria). It is likely that all pupils will be required to apply for meals
and then their parent’'s personal financial position assessed so that Pupil
Premiums are not affected.

Contract Services have recently introduced tablet recording processes in to
the kitchens in which they operate to detail on a daily basis the meal number
break down which are then emailed to schools for their agreement on a
weekly basis prior to invoices being raised at each month end. This system
must be supported by schools to maintain the cash flow of Contract Service’s
trading accounts.

The introduction of free school meals to all primary pupils may have a knock
on effect to secondary meal uptake too as parents find they are able to
contribute more towards lunchtime meals for any older children they have in
their household.

Consideration would need to be made on how long the commitment is to any
scheme as the initial start costs would need to be recouped over a number of
years it is expected.

The Public Health Team would have oversight of this initiative so that the
health and wellbeing benefits of the scheme can be monitored and evaluated.

3.4.10 There is no funding for this proposal, so funding will need to be allocated if it

4.2.

is agreed to proceed.

COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

The direct costs of this initiative are estimated to be up to £2.675m in a full
academic year. This is higher than the estimated additional cost reported to
full councit in February and the reasons for this are detailed in section 4.3
below.

For financial year 2014/15 (i.e. from September 2014 to March 2015), the
estimated cost would be £1.783m (i.e. 2/3rds of the full-year cost — based on
the number of school days). In the financial year 2015/16, the last term of the
scheme would cost £0.892m for the period April 2015 - July 2015. The actual
costs will be dependent on actual pupil numbers, the number of school days
and the level of take-up. These figures are marginally higher than ones
provided to Members in the budget setting process for two reasons:

o These revised figures are using the latest available pupils census
(January 2014), rather than the October 2013 census which was used
for forecasting costs in earlier proposals for Members; and

. The publication of the details of the DfE's Universal Infant Free School
Meals guidance, allowed the adoption of their planning assumption of
87% take-up, whereas previously around 80% had been used.

Page 13



4.3.

44.

4.5,

4.86.

5.1

5.2

Full Council on 26™ Match 2014 agreed a number of virements to allow the
scheme to be funded. The mayor has accepted a number of these virements
and has agreed the following funding strategy:

* in accordance with the resolution of Full Council, £1.05m of the Public
Health efficiencies or additional funding in 2015/16 will be ring-fenced
to support the local scheme for free school meals for primary age
pupils to proceed for one academic year.

* in accordance with the resolution of Full Council, £1.3m of the Public
Health funding in 2014/15 will be set aside to fund the local scheme for
free school meals, rather than funding the working start for women in
health and childcare programme.

¢ Should the outcome of the Public Health review identify further
efficiencies, £478k of those efficiencies in 2014/15 will be to provide for
the balance of funding required during the 2014/15 financial year.

s Should the outcome of the Public Health review not identify further
efficiencies, £478k will be earmarked and vired from the general
reserve in 2014/15, to meet commitments in 2014/15. This will require
additional savings of £239k in 2015/16 and £239k in 2016/17 and will
increase current MTFP savings targets in those years to £28,415k and
£39,239k respectively. This will ensure reserve balances are reinstated
back to agreed levels by 2016/17.

There are likely to be costs on schools associated with what might be a
stepped change in the number of pupils accessing a meal at lunchtime, but
these will vary from school to school and no estimates are readily available.
Food, catering staff, management, supervision, and light equipment (e.g.
crockery, kitchenware) costs would be expected to be met from within the
£2.30 per meal price. Lunchtime supervision would not be covered by these
costs and will vary from school to school, but would have to he met from
schools’ own budgets.

There may need to be some capital investment if school facilities are
insufficient to meet the requirements and the DfE has allocated £0.748m
school meals capital grants for Tower Hamlets (including £0.157m for VA
schools) for 2014/15, which might be used to deliver this.

The virement arising from the recommendation in this report would allocate
funding to vote A51 Public Health

LEGAL COMMENTS

As there is no specific provision in the 2014/15 budget for the free school
meals project, in order to contain expenditure within the budget, virements
from other budget heads are necessary.

Paragraph 3.3 of the Financial Procedure Rules provides that the Executive

(the Mayor) shall have power to vire resources subject to the limitation that
virement proposals that exceed £1million require the approval of full Council.

Page 14



5.3

5.4

5.5.

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

At its meeting on 26 March 2014 Council resolved that if the Mayor chose to
fund the project through specified budget heads as set out in the draft minutes
the necessary approval was given. Consequently the proposals to view
£1.05m and £1.3m from the Public Health budget accords with the Council
resolution and may be vired by the Mayor without further reference to Council.

The virement of £478,000 from either further Public Health efficiencies within
the Public Health budget or from reserves and does not require prior approval
by Council is within the powers of the Mayor as specified in the Financial
Procedure Rules.

Section 512 of the Education Act 1996 (as amended) states that Local
Authorities may provide registered pupils at their schools with milk, meals or
other refreshment. On request they are to provide school lunches. Where
school meals are provided the Local Authority must charge for what is
provided, and this is to be the same for all, save for exempted pupils. School
lunches (and milk if provided) are to be free of charge for pupils whose
parents (or who themselves) receive income support, or an income-based
jobseeker’s allowance or qualify under some other exemption.

The Local Authority or governing body of every maintained school must not
charge for anything unless they have drawn up a statement of general policy
on charging. The policy will cover optional extras, such as after school clubs,
holiday play schemes. Neither the governing body not the Local Authority
may make a charge unless they have decided upon a charging and
remissions policy, which should be kept under regular review.

Article 13 of the Council’s Constitution provides that a key decision is an
executive decision which is likely to result in the local authority incurring
expenditure which is significant having regard to the local authority's budget
for the service or function to which the decision relates or to be significant in
terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two
or more wards in the borough.

The proposals cover one complete academic year which stretches across two
financial years. The Public Health budget from which the virements are
proposed amounts to £32m in each of the two financial years with the
proposed total virement of £2,828,000, this amounts to 4.4% of the budget. It
is not considered that an amount less than 5% of the budget is sufficient to be
significant.

The proposal will apply to the whole of the Borough with its population of
263,000 (2012). Those affected by the proposals are children currently not
eligible for free school meals in the primary age group which amounts to
approximately 6,500 or 2.5% of the total population of the Borough. Whilst
the impact of the scheme on communities may he significant, the decision to
proceed with the scheme has already heen the subject of prior decision and it
is only the finances which are now to be considered. The puiting in place of
the necessary financial arrangements will not itself have community impacts.

Page 15



5.10

5.1

7.1

In consequence of the criteria for a key decision not being met the decision to
vire funds for this project may be considered to be a non-key executive
decision.

When considering the funding arrangements proposed in the report, the
Mayor must have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under
the Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the
need to foster good relations between persons who show a protected
characteristic and those who don’t. The financial arrangements will support a
scheme which has itself been subject to an equality screening (as appended)
which identifies only positive impacts.

ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS

This initiative aims to ensure that all primary age pupils have equal access to
a nutritional meal at lunchtime, in order to promote a healthy lifestyle.

SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

Contract Services, Tower Hamlets' in-house catering provider, continually
seek improve the impact that their services offered have on the environment.
Some examples of this work is illustrated below:

. Wherever possible food is prepared on site within the school
environment utilising the latest most efficient catering equipment.
Where there are unsuitable, inappropriate or inefficient facilities
available on site the meals are prepared at the Toby Lane Central
Production Unit {(CPU) and transported hot utilising a small fleet of
vehicles. The use of the CPU and the careful planning of a generic
menu allows approximately 1800 meals to be prepared together
reducing energy costs.

. An electric delivery vehicle has been trialled with very positive results
and with the added advantage of zero emissions. Working with
colleagues in the Transport Department Contract Services are currently
tendering to replace some of the diesel fleet with electric vehicles.

. Through the involvement with the London Contract Supply Group
procurement model food is sourced wherever possible as locally as
possible. All meat except some lamb is UK sourced and of Red
Tractor standard and in the past six months there has been an
increased use of organic, local sourced, Fair Trade and seasonal fruit
and vegetables — this has permitted Contract Services to obtain the
Soil Association's Food for Life Silver Catering Mark (this is becoming
the standard for excellent school catering). In addition to this all eggs
used in all sectors of the business are free range.

o The cleaning materials used with the catering (and cleaning) sectors of
the business are continually monitored by the management team to

Page 16



8.2,

8.3.

9.1
10.

10.1

ensure new materials are sourced when available which have a
reduced impact on the environment.

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

There are risks associated with demographic changes and take-up, which
mean that precise numbers and, therefore, costs of this initiative can only be
estimated.

There is a risk that practical difficulties, particularly with the physical capacity
and adaptability of dining spaces and kitchen facilities, could require
investment to overcome.

The Department for Education use statutory free school meal data as a
deprivation index in funding schools, including for the Pupil Premium. There
is a danger that parents (and schools) see no incentive to register for the
statutory scheme if free meals are provided without registering. Officers and
schools have had to address these issues with the current local scheme and
will continue to do so.

CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

None
EFFICIENCY STATEMENT

This proposal will result in a stepped change in the number of meals provided
each day in Tower Hamlets schools. Nonetheless, the framework for
delivering meals in all primary schools is already in place and systems of
operation have developed over many years, with the recent experience of a
local scheme for free school meals for Reception and Year 1 pupils assisting
further. Contract Services are able to use their spending power to procure
good deals for food prices.

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report

NONE

Appendices

NONE

Background Documents — l.ocal Authorities (Executive Arrangements){Access
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012

NONE

Officer contact details for documents;

Page 17



Originating Officers and Contact Details

Name

Title

Contact for information

Michael Hales Service Manager — | 0207 364 5153
Contract Services Michael. Hales@towerhamlets.gov.uk
David Tully Interim Finance 0207 364 4960

Business Partner
ESCW

David. Tully@towerhamlets.gov.uk

Page 18




	Agenda
	1 Free School Meals for Primary Age Pupils

